



## Snohomish County Inter-jurisdictional Housing Committee

^Mukilteo ^Mountlake Terrace ^Lake Stevens ^Everett ^Mill Creek ^  
^Snohomish ^Sultan ^Marysville ^Edmonds ^Lynnwood ^Woodway ^  
^Granite Falls ^Housing Authority of Snohomish County ^

### Coordination Meeting #7 Wednesday, December 14, 2011

6:00 pm

Housing Authority of Snohomish County Offices

12625 4<sup>th</sup> Ave W, Ste 200, Everett

[www.hasco.org/contact/bus\\_driving\\_directions](http://www.hasco.org/contact/bus_driving_directions)

#### AGENDA

6:00 PM – Welcome and Introductions	Chair
6:05 PM –MOU Status	Becky Ableman
<b>DISCUSSION:</b> 6:20 PM Interim and Initial Work Program Discussion*	Glen Pickus All
6:50 PM – Housing Authority of SC Support	Bob Davis All
7:20 PM – Draft ILA Review*	Shane Hope Becky Ableman All
7:45 PM – Funding Strategy	All
7:55 PM – Next Steps - Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, March 14, 2010 - Agenda - Next Meeting Location: TBD	All

\*Materials attached



## Snohomish County Inter-jurisdictional Housing Committee

▲ Mukilteo ▲ Mountlake Terrace ▲ Lake Stevens ▲ Everett ▲ Mill Creek ▲  
▲ Snohomish ▲ Sultan ▲ Marysville ▲ Edmonds ▲ Lynnwood ▲ Woodway ▲  
▲ Granite Falls ▲ Housing Authority of Snohomish County ▲

### Interim Tasks

(starting 2012 using HASCO staff assisted by jurisdictions' staff)

#### 1. Create Education/Outreach/Information-sharing Opportunities (30%)

##### a. DEVELOP A STRATEGY AND TOOLS TO EDUCATE ELECTED OFFICIALS

The task is to educate elected officials about affordable housing issues and the roles they can play in obtaining funding for housing programs.

- i. Identify elected officials who could serve as primary contact points for federal and state agencies which provide housing funding (this would assist in attract housing money to Snohomish County).
- ii. Design workshop for elected officials to better inform them of housing issues and funding opportunities/challenges/processes

##### b. PACKAGE THE IJH COMMITTEE'S IDEA/MESSAGE.

- i. Use HASCO human resources staff (who has special training in leading facilitation) to work with electeds on the committee to create a succinct message of what the IJH Committee is all about. The message would be a key tool to use in presentations to city councils when the IJH ILA is being considered.
- ii. Use the message to promote media exposure of the IJH committee's existence and goals

#### 2. Provide Technical Expertise (30%)

##### CREATE A TEMPLATE JURISDICTIONS CAN USE IN DRAFTING THEIR HOUSING CONTINUUM AND CITY PROFILES.

With the template each jurisdiction can create effective literature conveying their individual housing needs. The continuum would also be useful in developing Housing Elements for Comprehensive Plans.

#### 3. Synthesize/analyze Data (30%)

##### IDENTIFY WHAT HOUSING DATA IS AVAILABLE

The task is to create a comprehensive catalogue of housing data relevant to Snohomish County and the State of Washington that can be used by jurisdictions' staff to more effectively identify their jurisdiction's housing needs. Data will be organized as to:

- what types of data are available
- what are the sources of each type of data
- how the data can be obtained
- what the data can be used for and how reliable the data is

#### 4. Pursue Grants and Financial Assistance (20%)

##### a. OBTAIN START-UP GRANT FUNDING FOR THE IJH PROGRAM FOR 2013

The objective is to identify and pursue funding (most likely from private foundations) that can be used to offset the initial 2-year costs of the IJH program. In doing so each jurisdictions' share would be decreased and the likelihood of jurisdictions signing an ILA and providing some funding would be increased.

##### b. CREATE A "HOW TO LEVERAGE FUNDING" MODEL FOR THE IJH PROGRAM BASED ON THE ARCH FUNDING MODEL

This task would analyze the successful ARCH funding mechanism and develop a version to be used as a model of the Snohomish County IJH.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian text

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian text



## Snohomish County Inter-jurisdictional Housing Committee

▲ Mukilteo ▲ Mountlake Terrace ▲ Lake Stevens ▲ Everett ▲ Mill Creek ▲  
▲ Snohomish ▲ Sultan ▲ Marysville ▲ Edmonds ▲ Lynnwood ▲ Woodway ▲  
▲ Granite Falls ▲ Housing Authority of Snohomish County ▲

### Initial Tasks

(starting 2013 with one FTE dedicated staff)

#### 1. Create Education/Outreach/Information-sharing Opportunities (30%)

#### 2. Provide Technical Expertise (30%)

##### DEVELOP A HOUSING PROVIDER BUSINESS LICENSE MODEL

The information generated by the business licenses could be used to assist in gathering housing data and code enforcement.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian text

#### 3. Synthesize/analyze Data (30%)

##### a. IDENTIFY DATA GAPS.

And if there are, develop/implement a strategy to fill those gaps.

##### b. DEVELOP A SURVEY TEMPLATE THAT CITIES CAN USE FOR GATHERING HOUSING DATA THEY'RE MOST INTERESTED IN.

##### c. IDENTIFY WHERE EXISTING AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS ARE LOCATED AND WHETHER THEY ARE UNDER THREAT OF CONVERSION, WHAT THEIR CONDITION IS AND WHAT THE CONDITION OF THE SURROUNDING PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IS. [High priority - Could this be an interim task?]

#### 4. Grants and Financial (20%)

##### a. DEVELOP A STRATEGY FOR LEVERAGING CDBG AND OTHER FUNDS.

##### b. DEVELOP A COMMON STRATEGY TO PURSUE FUNDING TO BE USED BY CITIES INDIVIDUALLY OR COLLECTIVELY.

##### c. DESIGN A NEW REVENUE GENERATION TOOL THAT CAN BE ADOPTED BY LEGISLATIVE BODIES AND THEN USED BY INDIVIDUAL CITIES.



## Snohomish County Inter-jurisdictional Housing Committee

^Mukilteo ^Mountlake Terrace ^Lake Stevens ^Everett ^Mill Creek ^  
^Snohomish ^Sultan ^Marysville ^Edmonds ^Lynnwood ^Woodway ^  
^Granite Falls ^Housing Authority of Snohomish County ^

**To:** Snohomish County Inter-jurisdictional Housing Committee

**From:** Rebecca Ableman,  
Co-Chair and Lake Stevens Planning & Community Development Director

**Subject:** Draft Interlocal Agreement for Discussion

**Date:** December 9, 2011

---

Attached is a preliminary draft interlocal agreement provided in an underlined/strike-out version for review and discussion (**Attachment A**). The document is a customized version of the current ILA used by ARCH (A Regional Coalition for Housing) in East King County and has been the organizational model used by the Committee. This ILA would be the participating mechanism for a formalized inter-jurisdictional housing organization in future when staff funding becomes available.

**Attachment B** is a draft cost schedule based on one full time staff member with both the County participation and non-participation. This does not reflect any outside funding support that could be used to offset member costs.

### Further Discussion Items for the Committee include:

While the initial Work Program would become an exhibit to this agreement, there are a number of questions the group must answer in order to complete the draft. These include:

1. (How) should the ILA be structured to ensure interaction with SCT?
2. Is an ILA the appropriate mechanism for the Housing Authority to become a party?
3. Does the ILA need to further spell out HASCO's interaction if they become the "host" for the program's administering agency including the notion that this organization is intended to further the goals and policies of municipalities in their role for sustainable housing and not to duplicate specialties and roles that are those of the housing authority's.
4. Should this agreement further direct the details of the "administering agency's" responsibilities or is the agreement general enough to allow flexibility yet accountability to the parties?
5. Could the idea of the "Advisory Board" include City staff members as well as housing industry advisors?
6. Should the Contributions section of the ILA take into account that other funding received for the program would offset party contributions?

### Attachments

- A Draft Interlocal Agreement
- B Draft Cost Share Scenarios

ATTACHMENT A

~~Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for ARCHSCTIJHC  
A Regional Coalition for Housing Snohomish County Interjurisdictional Housing  
Committee~~

~~(Effective Date: July 1, 2010)~~

This Interlocal Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between the undersigned Cities of ~~Bellevue, Kirkland, Redmond, Bothell, Woodinville, Issaquah, Mercer Island, Newcastle, Beaux Arts, Clyde Hill, Hunts Point, Medina, Yarrow Point, Kenmore and Sammamish,~~ which are municipal corporations organized under the laws of the State of Washington, and ~~King Snohomish~~ County, a subdivision of state government (individually, the "Party", collectively, the "Parties") and ~~The Housing Authority of Snohomish County (HASCO)~~. This Agreement amends and restates the prior agreements by and between the Parties relating to the creation and operation of the ~~joint board Interjurisdictional Housing Committee- ("SCTIJHC") known as A Regional Coalition for Housing ("ARCH")~~. This Agreement is made pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, chapter 39.34 RCW, and has been authorized by the legislative body of each jurisdiction.

WHEREAS, the Parties have a common goal to ensure the availability of housing that meets the needs of all income levels ~~including;~~ and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to provide a sound base of housing policies and programs in ~~East King Snohomish~~ County and to complement the efforts of existing organizations to address housing needs in ~~East King Snohomish~~ County; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to act cooperatively to formulate affordable housing goals and policies, to foster efforts to provide affordable housing by ~~encouraging combining public~~ funding of ~~of housing projects from any combination of public, non-profit, and private-sector resources,~~ to seek opportunities to leverage resources, to support implementation of the goals of the state Growth Management Act and related Countywide Planning Policies relating to affordable housing, and to do so efficiently and expeditiously; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that the most efficient and expeditious way for the Parties to address ~~affordable housing needs in East King Snohomish~~ County is through cooperative action by the Parties; and

WHEREAS, the intent of this cooperative undertaking is not to duplicate efforts of non-profit corporations and other entities already providing affordable-housing-related services; now therefore,

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

**ATTACHMENT A**

1. **PURPOSE.** All Parties to this Agreement have responsibility for local and regional planning for the provision of housing affordable to citizens that work and/or live in ~~East King~~Snohomish County. The Parties desire to act cooperatively to formulate affordable housing goals and policies and to foster efforts to provide affordable housing by combining ~~public~~-funding with private-sector resources. The Parties further intend that this interlocal agreement serve as a legal framework for all communities within the ARCH-SCIJHC sphere of influence (See **Exhibit A**) to cooperate in planning for and providing affordable housing; the Parties therefore encourage other cities in ~~East King~~Snohomish County to join the Parties in this endeavor.

**2. MISSION AND GOALS:** All parties to this Agreement support the following mission and goals;

To help increase the supply of attainable\* and sustainable\* housing near jobs, transit, and services through an interjurisdictional approach

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

**Goals:**

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

1. Create a venue for interjurisdictional cooperation and education to meet housing needs.
2. Provide housing information to assist local elected officials
3. Provide technical assistance among members to develop and implement local housing policies, programs, and regulations
4. Advocate for housing issues and resources, consistent with participating jurisdictions' objectives
5. Attract additional public resources, private resources, and not-for profit investment into attainable housing (by coordinating, leveraging, or contributing local resources, as appropriate)
6. Facilitate retention of existing sustainable housing.
7. Administer any specific housing programs as approved by the membership.
8. Facilitate the building of attainable housing (without being the builder)

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

\* "Attainable housing" refers to housing that is safe and affordable to low- or moderate- income households

\* "Sustainable housing" refers to housing that meets economic, environmental, and social needs of the community. This includes housing that is energy-efficient, safe, and of appropriate materials and construction to assure the housing's longevity

2. **STRUCTURE.** To accomplish the purposes of this Agreement, the Parties hereby create a joint and cooperative undertaking responsible for administering the activities described herein, to be called Interjurisdictional Housing Committee ("SCIJHC")~~A Regional Coalition for Housing ("ARCH").~~ ARCHSCIJHC shall be governed by an ~~Executive~~ Board composed of members as provided for in section 4.a of this Agreement. The ~~Executive~~ Board shall constitute a "joint board" as that term is used in RCW 39.34.030(4). The ~~Executive~~ Board shall be assisted by ~~an~~ administrative staff ~~and by a Citizen Advisory Board.~~

ATTACHMENT A

3. RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY. In order to carry out the purposes of this Agreement, ARCHSCIJHC shall have the following responsibilities and authority:

~~a. To provide recommendations to the Parties regarding the allocation of public funding for affordable housing purposes.~~

~~b. Through its Administering Agency (defined in Section 5), to enter into agreements with third parties for the use and application of public funds contributed by individual Parties to the ARCH Housing Trust Funds Account established in Section 12, under such terms and conditions as may be agreed by the individual contributing Parties, as further described in Section 12. ARCH shall, at least annually, report to the Parties on the geographic distribution of all housing trust funds as recommended by ARCH.~~

ea. To provide recommendations to the Parties regarding local and regional affordable housing policies. ARCHSCIJHC will assist the Parties in developing strategies and programs to achieve Growth Management Act housing goals. ARCHSCIJHC will provide technical assistance to any Party ~~adopting~~ looking to adopt land use incentives, Comprehensive Plan housing elements, policies, reasonable measures, or affordable housing programs. ARCHSCIJHC staff will research model programs, develop draft legislation, prepare briefing materials and make presentations to planning commissions and councils upon request by a Party. ARCHSCIJHC will assist Parties in developing strategies and programs to implement county-wide affordable housing policies to meet the Growth Management Act objective for an equitable and rational distribution of low- and moderate-income housing.

eb. To facilitate cooperation between the private and public sector with regard to the provision of affordable housing. ARCHSCIJHC will work directly with private developers, financial institutions, non-profit corporations and other public entities to assist in the implementation of affordable housing projects. ARCHSCIJHC will work directly with any Party to provide technical assistance with regard to the public funding of affordable housing projects and the implementation of affordable housing regulatory agreements for private developments. ARCHSCIJHC will also provide assistance in making surplus sites available for affordable housing and in developing affordable housing alternatives for such sites.

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

ec. To develop standard regulatory agreements acceptable to private and public financial institutions to facilitate the availability of funding for private and public projects containing affordable housing.

fd. To provide other technical advice to any Party upon request and to enter into agreements to provide technical assistance to other public entities on a reimbursable basis.

**ATTACHMENT A**

~~ge.~~ To provide support and educational activities and to monitor legislative and regulatory activities related to affordable housing at the state and federal levels.

~~h. To develop and to carry out procedures for monitoring of affordable units and to administer direct service housing programs on behalf of any Party. Such direct service housing programs may include but are not limited to relocation assistance programs, rent voucher and/or deposit loan programs, etc.~~

~~if.~~ To work directly with other public, non-profit, and private entities for the development of affordable housing policies and to encourage the provision of affordable housing.

~~ig.~~ Pursuant to the direction of the ~~Executive~~ Board, to take other appropriate and necessary action to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.

4. ~~EXECUTIVE BOARD.~~

a. Membership. ARCHSCIJHC shall be governed by an ~~Executive~~ Board composed of ~~the chief executive officer~~ one Council member or Board of Commissioners member of each Party, with the following exception. There will not be more than two members on the ~~Executive~~ Board representing cities with population less than 5,000 persons, unless approved by the ~~Executive~~ Board. In the event that there are more than two Parties that are members of ARCHSCIJHC with population less than 5,000 persons, then those Parties will propose ~~to the Executive Board~~ for the ~~Executive~~ Board's approval, a method for shared membership on the ~~Executive~~ Board by those Parties. Any member of the ~~Executive~~ Board representing more than one Party must be approved by the chief executive officer of those Parties being represented by the shared ~~Executive~~ Board member. The ~~Executive~~ Board shall administer this cooperative undertaking pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and pursuant to any procedures adopted by the ~~Executive~~ Board.

b. Chair. The Chair of the ~~Executive~~ Board shall be elected by the members of the Board from the Board membership; shall preside over all meetings of the ~~Executive~~ Board; and shall, in the absence of a Program Manager, process issues, organize meetings and provide for administrative support as required by the ~~Executive~~ Board.

c. Alternate Member. Each member of the ~~Executive~~ Board shall be entitled to designate one alternate member who shall serve in the place of the member on the ~~Executive~~ Board during the member's absence or inability to serve.

d. Powers. The ~~Executive~~ Board shall have the power to (1) develop and recommend a budget and work program to the Parties; (2) adopt procedures for the administration of ARCHSCIJHC and for the conduct of meetings; (3) make recommendations to the Parties concerning planning, policy and ~~the funding of partnerships for~~ affordable housing projects; (4) establish policies for the expenditure

## ATTACHMENT A

of budgeted items; (5) appoint one of the Parties to serve as “Administering Agency” to carry out administrative functions as further described in this Agreement; (6) establish a special fund with the Administering Agency as authorized by RCW 39.34.030, to be known as the “Operating Fund of the ARCHSCIJHC Joint Board” (“ARCHSCIJHC Fund”) within which Fund may be established various accounts and subaccounts including but not limited to an “ARCHSCIJHC Operating Account”(into which will be deposited funding for the ARCHSCIJHC operating budget) ~~and a “Housing Trust Funds Account”~~; (7) hold regular meetings on such dates and at such places as the Executive Board may designate; (8) through its Administering Agency, enter into contracts and agreements for the provision of personnel and other necessary services to ARCHSCIJHC, including accounting and legal services and the purchase of insurance, and authorize the Administering Agency to execute such other contracts, agreements or other legal documents necessary for ARCHSCIJHC to carry out its purposes; (9) establish the responsibilities and direct and oversee the activities of the Program Manager; ~~and~~ (10) ~~appoint Citizen Advisory Board Members; and~~ (11) ~~take whatever other action is necessary to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.~~

5. ADMINISTRATION AND OVERSIGHT. The ~~Executive~~ Board shall have final decision-making authority on behalf of ARCHSCIJHC over all legislative and administrative matters within the scope of this Agreement. The ~~Executive~~ Board may delegate responsibility for general oversight of the operations of ARCHSCIJHC to a Program Manager. The Program Manager shall submit quarterly budget performance and progress reports on the status of the work program elements to the Executive Board and the governing body of each Party. Such reports and contents thereof shall be in a form acceptable to the Executive Board.

The ~~Executive~~ Board shall designate the Administering Agency, which will provide administrative support services on behalf of ARCHSCIJHC. The Administering Agency shall be the Fiscal Agent for ARCHSCIJHC in accordance with the requirements of RCW Chapter 39.34. ARCHSCIJHC shall be staffed with personnel provided by the Parties and/or independent contractors contracting directly with ARCHSCIJHC through its Administering Agency.

The Administering Agency shall also coordinate and interact with the Snohomish County Tomorrow organization.

Any Party providing personnel to ARCHSCIJHC shall remain solely responsible for the continued payment of any and all compensation and benefits to such personnel as well as for any worker's compensation claims. All Parties shall cooperate fully in assisting ARCHSCIJHC to provide the services authorized herein.

## 6. MEETINGS OF EXECUTIVE BOARD.

a. Frequency. The ~~Executive~~ Board shall meet as often as it deems necessary, but not less often than quarterly.

**ATTACHMENT A**

b. Quorum. A quorum at any meeting of the ~~Executive~~ Board shall consist of the Board members (or alternates) who represent a simple majority of the Board's membership.

c. Action. No action may be taken except at a meeting where a quorum exists. Action by the ~~Executive~~ Board requires an affirmative vote by a majority of the Board's membership, provided however, that a supermajority (66% in number of Board members) shall be required to appoint the Administering Agency. No action shall be taken except at a meeting open to the public.

~~7.~~

~~8. CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD. A Citizen Advisory Board is hereby created to provide advice and recommendation to the Executive Board on issues related to land and/or money resource allocation for affordable housing projects and to provide public relations and educational outreach services. The Citizen Advisory Board shall consist of not more than fifteen (15) and not less than twelve (12) citizen members. The Executive Board shall appoint members to the Citizen Advisory Board. Citizen members appointed to the Citizen Advisory Board must have a knowledge and understanding of affordable housing and be committed to the furtherance of affordable housing in Snohomish County on the Eastside. Appointments shall be for a four two-year term with service limited to a total of two three consecutive terms. The Executive Board shall adopt procedures for the convening and administration of the Citizen Advisory Board. A citizen member may be removed from the Citizen Advisory Board by the Executive Board with or without cause upon a majority vote of membership of the Executive Board.~~

~~8. MEETINGS OF CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD:~~

~~a. Frequency. The Citizen Advisory Board shall meet as often as it deems necessary, but not less often than quarterly.~~

~~b. Quorum. A quorum at any meeting of the Citizen Advisory Board shall consist of the Board members who represent a simple majority of the Board's membership.~~

~~c. Action. No action may be taken except at a meeting where a quorum exists. Action by the Citizen Advisory Board requires an affirmative vote by a majority of those members attending a Board meeting where a quorum exists. No action shall be taken except at a meeting open to the public.~~

97. DURATION AND TERMINATION. This Agreement shall be of ~~five-two~~ years' duration and shall continue in effect for subsequent five-year periods upon affirmative vote of a majority of the membership of the ~~Executive~~ Board. Any vote to continue the Agreement shall be taken between three to six months before the end of the five-year term. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by affirmative vote of a majority of the legislative bodies of the Parties to this Agreement.

## ATTACHMENT A

Upon termination of this Agreement, all property acquired or set aside during the life of the Agreement shall be disposed of in the following manner:

- (i) all property contributed without charge by any Party shall revert to the contributing Party;
- (ii) all property purchased by ARCHSCIJHC after the effective date of this Agreement shall be distributed to the Parties based on each Party's pro rata contribution to the overall budget at the time the property was purchased;
- (iii) except as provided in Subsection (iv) below, all unexpended or reserve funds shall be distributed to the Parties based on each Party's pro rata contribution to the overall budget in effect at the time the Agreement is terminated;
- ~~(iv) all uncommitted monies in the Housing Trust Funds Account shall be distributed to the Parties by remitting the total uncommitted amounts remaining in each Party's Individual Account (as described in Section 12) to that Party; and~~
- ~~(v) each Party that has funded a project through the Housing Trust Funds Account shall be substituted for the Administering Agency with regard to all project financing documents, and the Administering Agency shall be released from further obligations with respect thereto.~~

10. WITHDRAWAL. Any Party may withdraw from this Agreement by giving ~~one year's~~ six month's written notice to the ~~Executive~~ Board, by December 31 in any year, of its intention to terminate, effective December 31 of the following year. Any Party withdrawing from this Agreement shall remain legally and financially responsible for any obligation incurred by the Party pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to any project financing documents executed by the Administering Agency on behalf of that Party, during the time the withdrawing Party was a member of ARCHSCIJHC.

11. BUDGET. The budget year for ARCHSCIJHC shall be January 1 to December 31 of any year. On or before June 1st of each year, a recommended operating budget and work plan for ARCHSCIJHC for the next budget year shall be prepared, reviewed and recommended by the ~~Executive~~ Board and transmitted to each Party. The recommended operating budget shall contain an itemization of all categories of budgeted expenses and shall contain an itemization of the amount of each Party's contribution, including in-kind services, toward that budget.

a. No recommended budget or work plan shall become effective unless and until approved by the legislative body of each Party and finally adopted by the ~~Executive~~ Board. Approval of the budget by a Party shall obligate that Party to make whatever contribution(s) is budgeted for that Party.

b. Such contribution(s) shall be transmitted to ARCHSCIJHC on a quarterly basis at the beginning of each quarter unless otherwise provided in the budget document. Each Party shall specify the amount of its contribution to be deposited by the Administering Agency into the ARCHSCIJHC Operating Account, ~~as well as the amount, if any, to be deposited into the Party's Individual Account within the ARCH Housing Trust Funds Account established by Section 12.~~

## ATTACHMENT A

c. If any Party is delinquent by more than three months in the payment of its approved operating budget contribution to the ARCHSCTIJHC Operating Account, such Party shall not be entitled to vote on matters before the Executive Board until such delinquency has been paid; provided however, that a Party's decision not to contribute funds to its Individual Account, or its delinquency in funding the same shall not affect that Party's voting rights on the Executive Board.

~~12. HOUSING TRUST FUNDS ACCOUNT ESTABLISHED; PROCEDURES FOR ADMINISTERING TRUST FUNDS ACCOUNT CONTRIBUTIONS. Upon resolution of the Executive Board, the Administering Agency shall establish and maintain an account within the ARCH Fund for the purpose of administering the contributions of Parties to affordable housing projects and programs, to be known as the ARCH Housing Trust Funds Account. The amounts in the Housing Trust Funds Account shall be held and disbursed by the Administering Agency as described herein.~~

~~a. Within the Housing Trust Funds Account, a sub-account shall be established for each Party to this Agreement that chooses to contribute to the Housing Trust Funds Account. Such sub-accounts are collectively referred to as the "Individual Accounts." Contributions to an Individual Account from a Party may be released only upon, and in accordance with, the written direction of that Party.~~

~~b. A subaccount shall be established within each Individual Account for each project or program funded in whole or part by a Party from its Individual Account. Such sub-accounts are referred to as "Project Accounts."~~

~~c. The Administering Agency shall maintain records sufficient to separately track the deposits, withdrawals and interest earnings, within each Individual Account and each Project Account, and shall provide quarterly reports to all Parties as to the status of funds in each Individual Account and Project Account. The Administering Agency's responsibilities under this Section may be delegated to the ARCH Program Manager to the extent consistent with applicable law and as the Administering Agency and Executive Board may agree.~~

~~d. Funds transmitted to ARCH for deposit in the Housing Trust Funds Account shall be held by ARCH until directed for application to a specific project or program by the contributing Party; provided, that uncommitted funds in an Individual Account shall be remitted to the contributing Party within 45 days of receipt of written request from the Party signed by its Chief Executive Officer, or upon the Party's withdrawal from ARCH in accordance with the terms of Section 10, or upon the dissolution of ARCH per Section 9.~~

~~e. Funds within the Housing Trust Funds Account shall be invested by the Administering Agency in investments permitted by state law for investment of public funds. Investment earnings shall be credited to each Individual Account and Subaccount on a pro rata basis.~~

## ATTACHMENT A

~~f. The Executive Board shall develop standard forms of approvals and agreements to be used in the application of funds contributed to the Housing Trust Funds Account (collectively referred to as "project financing documents"), consistent with the following goals and procedures:~~

~~(i) Each Party choosing to participate in funding a project or program through the Housing Trust Funds Account will by action of its legislative body authorize the application of a specified amount of its Individual Account monies to such project or program, and shall authorize and direct ARCH, ARCH Program Manager, and the Administering Agency to take such actions as necessary to accomplish this. The Executive Board shall recommend to the individual legislative bodies various terms to accompany their authorizations, and the legislative body authorizations shall at a minimum include terms related to:~~

- ~~\_\_\_\_\_ 1. amount of funds allocated;~~
- ~~\_\_\_\_\_ 2. project description, including minimum affordability requirements, if any;~~
- ~~\_\_\_\_\_ 3. nature of the funding commitment (loan, grant, or other);~~
- ~~\_\_\_\_\_ 4. in the event the funding commitment is provided as a loan, the general repayment terms including but not limited to the term of the loan and applicable interest rate(s); and~~
- ~~\_\_\_\_\_ 5. a general description of the security interests, if any, to be recorded in favor of the Party.~~

~~(ii) For each individual housing project or program to be funded through the Housing Trust Funds Account, the developer, owner or administrator of such project or program (generally referred to as the "developer"), shall enter into the necessary set of agreements (project financing documents) with the Administering Agency. The project financing documents shall specify that the Administering Agency is acting as administering agency on behalf of each Party that is providing Housing Trust Funds Account funding to the project or program pursuant to this Agreement and RCW 39.34.030(4), and shall identify each such participating funding Party. The project financing documents will be consistent with general forms of agreement approved by the Executive Board and the terms and conditions approved by the legislative bodies of the funding Parties. The project financing agreements will incorporate all terms and conditions relative to the use and (if applicable) repayment of such funds, and provide for transfer of the Housing Trust Funds Account monies from the funding Parties to the developer.~~

~~(iii) Funding contributions to, and repayments (if any) from, specific projects and programs shall be recorded by the Administering Agency, including recording of monies deposited and withdrawn from each Party's Individual Account and Project Accounts therein. Repayments (if any) under any project financing agreement shall be applied *pro rata* to the funding Parties' Individual Accounts based on the ratio of funding~~

## ATTACHMENT A

~~contributed to the project by each Party, unless the funding Parties otherwise agree.~~

~~(iv) Unless the Parties funding a project or program through the Housing Trust Funds Account otherwise agree, a default, termination or other action against a developer or other third party may be declared only after securing approval in writing of the chief executive officers of funding Parties which together have contributed not less than 51% of the total ARCH member funding to the project. The Administering Agency shall provide reasonable notice and information regarding the status of projects as necessary to each funding Party's Chief Executive Officer to allow him or her to make a timely decision in this regard. Funding parties not consenting to such default, termination or other action shall be bound by the decision of the majority. All funding Parties shall be obligated on a pro rata basis (based on their contributions to the project) to pay to the Administering Agency its reasonable costs and expenses incurred in furtherance of such actions. Any funds recovered through such actions shall be allocated to the funding Parties Individual Accounts pro rata based on their respective funding contributions to a project.~~

~~(v) The Executive Board may from time to time authorize the Administering Agency to administer housing project agreements entered into prior to the effective date of this Amended and Restated Agreement, upon terms consistent with this Agreement and subject to the consent of the Administering Agency and the Parties to such agreements.~~

4312. DUES, ASSESSMENTS AND BUDGET AMENDMENTS. Funding for the activities of ARCHSCIJHC shall be provided solely through the budgetary process. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, no separate dues, charges or assessments shall be imposed or required of the Parties except upon unanimous vote of the membership of the Executive Board and ratification by the legislative body of each Party to the Agreement. An approved budget shall not be modified unless and until approved by the legislative body of each Party and finally adopted by the Executive Board; provided that, in the event a Party agrees to totally fund an additional task to the work program, not currently approved in the budget, the task may be added to the work plan and the budget amended to reflect the funding of the total cost of such task by the requesting Party, upon approval by a majority of the membership of the Executive Board without approval by the individual Parties. ~~Notwithstanding the foregoing, contributions by a Party to its Individual Account within the Housing Trust Funds Account shall be solely within the discretion of that Party and are not considered "assessments."~~

### 14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS.

a. Each Party shall, indemnify and hold other Parties (including without limitation the Party serving as, and acting in its capacity as, ARCHSCIJHC's

## ATTACHMENT A

Administering Agency), their officers, officials, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of that Party's wrongful acts or omissions in connection with the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, except to the extent the injuries or damages are caused by another Party. In the event of recovery due to the aforementioned circumstances, the Party responsible for any such wrongful acts or omissions shall pay any judgment or lien arising therefrom, including any and all costs and reasonable attorneys fees as part thereof. In the event more than one Party is held to be at fault, the obligation to indemnify and to pay costs and attorneys fees, shall be only to the extent of the percentage of fault allocated to each respective Party by a final judgment of the court.

b. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of a Party hereto (including without limitation the Party serving as, and acting in its capacity as, ARCHSCIJHC's Administering Agency), its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Party's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Party's negligence. It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Party's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance Title 51 RCW, solely for the purpose of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the Parties. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

c. Each Party (including without limitation the Party serving as, and acting in its capacity as, ARCHSCIJHC's Administering Agency) shall give the other Parties proper notice of any claim or suit coming within the purview of these indemnities.

15. INSURANCE. ARCHSCIJHC's ~~Executive~~ Board, Program Staff and the Administering Agency shall take such steps as are reasonably practicable to minimize the liability of the Parties associated with their participation in this Agreement, including but not limited to the utilization of sound business practice. The ~~Executive~~ Board shall determine which, if any, insurance policies may be reasonably practicably acquired to cover the operations of ARCHSCIJHC and the activities of the Parties pursuant to this Agreement (which may include general liability, errors and omissions, fiduciary, crime and fidelity insurance), and shall direct the acquisition of same.

16. AMENDMENTS. Any amendments to this Agreement must be in writing. This Agreement may be amended upon approval of at least two thirds (66%) of the legislative bodies of all Parties to this Agreement, evidenced by the authorized signatures of such approving Parties as of the effective date of the amendment; *provided that* any amendment to this Agreement affecting the terms and conditions of membership on the ~~Executive~~ Board, powers of the ~~Executive~~ Board, voting rights of ~~Executive~~ Board members, Party contribution responsibilities, hold harmless and indemnification requirements, provisions regarding duration, termination or withdrawal, or the conditions of this Section shall require consent of the legislative authorities of all

**ATTACHMENT A**

Parties. This Section shall not be construed to require amendment of this Agreement for the addition of a new Party contemplated under Section 17 or for any related revision to ~~Executive~~ Board membership authorized in Section 4(a).

17. ADDITIONAL PARTIES. Any city~~, or~~ town, county, or special partner within the approved ARCHSCTIJHC Sphere of Influence may, upon execution of the Agreement and approval of the budget and work plan by its legislative body, become a Party to this Agreement upon affirmative vote of a majority of the membership of the ~~Executive~~ Board. The ~~Executive~~ Board shall determine by a vote of a majority of its membership what, if any, funding obligations such additional Party shall commit to as a condition of becoming a Party to this Agreement.

18. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity of any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or portion thereof, shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of the Agreement.

19. CONFLICT RESOLUTION. Whenever any dispute arises between the Parties or between a Party or Parties, the ~~Executive~~ Board, or the Administering Agency (referred to collectively in this Section as the "parties" ) under this Agreement which is not resolved by routine meetings or communications, the parties agree to seek resolution of such dispute in good faith by meeting, as soon as feasible. The meeting shall include the Chair of the ~~Executive~~ Board, the Program Manager, and the representative(s) of the Parties involved in the dispute. If the parties do not come to an agreement on the dispute, any party may pursue mediation through a process to be mutually agreed to in good faith between the parties within 30 days, which may include binding or nonbinding decisions or recommendations. The mediator(s) shall be individuals skilled in the legal and business aspects of the subject matter of this Agreement. The parties to the dispute shall share equally the costs of mediation and assume their own costs.

20. SURVIVABILITY. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, the provisions of Section 9 ( Duration and Termination), Section 10 (Withdrawal), Section 14 (Indemnification and Hold Harmless) shall remain operative and in full force and effect, regardless of the withdrawal or termination of any Party or the termination of this Agreement.

21. WAIVER. No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the Party claimed to have waived or consented.

22. SUBSEQUENT BREACH. Waiver of any default shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default. Waiver of breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of the Agreement unless stated to be such through written approval of all Parties.

**ATTACHMENT A**

23. NOTICE. Any notice to the ~~Executive~~ Board shall be in writing and shall be addressed to the Chair of the ~~Executive~~ Board and to the Program Manager. In the absence of a Program Manager, notice shall be given to the Chief Executive Officer of the Administering Agency. Any notice to an Officer or Party shall be sent, respectively, to the address specified by the chief executive officer of the Party.

24. ASSIGNMENT. No Party may sell, transfer or assign any of its rights or benefits under this Agreement without ~~Executive~~ Board approval.

25. VENUE. The Venue for any action related to this Agreement shall be in Superior Court in and for King-Snohomish County, Washington at Seattle/Everett.

26. RETAINED RESPONSIBILITY AND AUTHORITY. Parties retain the responsibility and authority for managing and maintaining their own internal systems and programs related to affordable housing activities.

27. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is for the benefit of the Parties only, and no third party shall have any rights hereunder.

28. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and, if so signed, shall be deemed one integrated Agreement.

29. FILING AND EFFECTIVE DATE; PRIOR AGREEMENTS. T his Agreement shall become effective ~~July 1, 2010~~, subject to its prior approval by the legislative bodies of all jurisdictions who are members of ARCHSCTIJHC as of ~~January 1, 2010~~, and upon posting of the Agreement on a Party's web site or other electronically retrievable public source. ~~Upon the effective date of this Agreement, the prior interlocal agreements relating to ARCH (the "First Amended Interlocal Agreement for ARCH A Regional Coalition for Housing," dated January 1993, the "First Amendment to the First Amended Interlocal Agreement for ARCH A Regional Coalition for Housing," dated February 1999, and the "Second Amendment to the First Amended Interlocal Agreement for ARCH A Regional Coalition for Housing," dated November 1999), are amended and restated by this Agreement.~~

Approved and executed this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20120.

Name of Party: \_\_\_\_\_ Approved as to form

By: \_\_\_\_\_  
Its: \_\_\_\_\_ City Attorney

Formatted: Highlight

|

ATTACHMENT A

DRAFT

<b>MOU Signees</b>	<b>Population</b>	<b>Cost on per capita basis w/o County</b>	<b>Cost on per capita basis w/ County</b>
Everett	103,019	\$25,754.75	\$14,422.66
Marysville	60,020	\$15,005.00	\$8,402.80
Edmonds	39,709	\$9,927.25	\$5,559.26
Lynnwood	35,836	\$8,959.00	\$5,017.04
Lake Stevens	28,069	\$7,017.25	\$3,929.66
Mukilteo	20,254	\$5,063.50	\$2,835.56
Mountlake Terrace	19,909	\$4,977.25	\$2,787.26
Mill Creek	18,244	\$4,561.00	\$2,554.16
Snohomish	9,098	\$2,274.50	\$1,273.72
Sultan	4,651	\$1,162.75	\$651.14
Woodway	1,307	\$326.75	\$182.98
Granite Falls	3,364	\$841.00	\$470.96
HASCO		In-kind	In-kind
<b>Total</b>	<b>343,480</b>	<b>Total = \$85,870</b>	
Unincor County	286,727		\$40,141.78
<b>Total</b>	<b>630,207</b>		<b>Total = \$88,229</b>
Cost per capita w/o county = \$0.25			
Cost per capita w/ county = \$0.14			